
   
 

AGENDA 

LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 

REGULAR MEETING 

NOVEMBER 8, 2023 

 
 
I. Opening of meeting at ________________ p.m. by __________________ 
 
 
II. Notation of Attendance & Pledge of Allegiance  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
III. Announcement by presiding officer, pursuant to New Jersey Open Public Meetings Act, 

that 
 

Adequate Notice of this Regular Meeting and of all Regular Meetings for the 
Year 2023, has been provided by publication thereof in the Link on February 23, 
2023 as a “legal” advertisement and in the Asbury Park Press on February 19, 
2023 as a “legal” advertisement, and by forwarding duplicates thereof on 
February 15, 2023, to the Clerks of the City of Long Branch, Borough of West 
Long Branch and Borough of Monmouth Beach for filing in their respective 
offices and for posting in a public place in each such Municipality.  Notice of this 
Regular Meeting to be held both in-person and electronically has been provided 
electronically by posting thereof on the official website of the Long Branch 
Sewerage Authority pursuant to Public Law 2020, C.11. 
 
 

Name Position In Out 
Donald S. Riley Chairman   
Michael Booth Vice-Chairman   
David G. Brown  Secretary   
Bryan I. Larco Treasurer   
Susie Morris  Asst. Secretary/ Treas.   
    
Thomas Roguski Executive Director   
Charles J. Fallon   Auditor   
John L. Bonello Counsel   
Colliers Eng. Engineer    
Nicole Woods   Secretary   
    
    



   
 

IV. Public Participation 
 

Motion by_________________, seconded by ________________ that this item of the 
Agenda be closed. 

 
Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco      Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
V  Miscellaneous Suggestions for Good of the Authority 
 
 

Motion by_________________, seconded by ________________ that this item of the 
Agenda be closed. 

 
Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco      Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
VI. As to Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 18, 2023  
 

Motion by __________________, seconded by ______________ that the reading of the 
minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority held on October 
18, 2023, be dispensed with, and that such Minutes be, and they are hereby, approved as 
recorded and circulated. 
  

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco      Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 
                 

 
VII. As to Minutes of the Executive Session held on October 18, 2023, if any (NONE) 
 

Motion by ________________, seconded by ______________ that the reading of the 
minutes of the Executive Session held on October 18, 2023, be dispensed with, and that 
such Minutes be, and they are hereby, approved as recorded and circulated. 
 

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco      Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
VIII. Correspondence 
 

Motion by______________, seconded by ________________, as to items to be received 
and filed. 

 
Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco      Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 



   
 

LIST OF CORRESPONDENCE FOR REGULAR MEETING 

LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 

NOVEMBER 8, 2023 

 
1) Affidavit of Publication dated 10/12/23 received 10/16/23 from the Asbury Park Press, 

re: Notice to bidders for the Inflow/ Infiltration Improvement Project/ Bid opening 
November 14, 2023, at 11AM  

 
2) Letter dated September 2023 received 10/17/23 from the Municipal Excess Liability Joint 

Insurance Fund, re: MEL Annual Report  
 

3) Certified Sample Form of Public Notice dated 10/06/23 received 10/19/23, re: 38 
Rivington Ave (NOT LBSA)  
 

4) Letter dated 10/19/2023 received 10/20/23 from the Office of the City Clerk, re: 
Ordinance O-29-23 Approving and Adopting Redevelopment Plan for Non-
Condemnation Bath Avenue & Third Ave Redevelopment  
 

5) Letter dated 10/20/23 received 10/20/23 from Colliers Engineering & Design, re: Lower 
Broadway Place Review / PV Broadway LLC  
 

6) Letter dated 10/23/23 received 10/23/23 from InSite Engineering, re: Utility Availability 
Request/ Sewer Proposed Subdivision/ 36 Patten Lane / Block 452 Lot 15.01 
 

7) Copy of letter dated 10/23/23 received 10/23/23 from Thomas Roguski to Kevin Hayes, 
re: Letter of Service Availability/ Sanitary Sewer/ 36 Patten Lane/ Block 452 Lot 15.01 
 

8) Copy of letter dated 10/27/23 received 10/30/23 from Thomas Roguski, to: Camillus T. 
Slade, re: Letter of Service Availability/ 147 Pavilion Avenue/ Block 228 Lot 30  
 

9) Letter dated 10/26/23 received 10/30/23 from the City Clerk, re: Ordinance of Higher 
Learning Overlay District MUO / Block 70 and Various Lot 

 
10) Letter dated 10/26/23 received 10/30/23 from the City Clerk, re: Notice    Stating that the 

Ordinance that was received on correspondence 10-02 has revised and replaced with 
correspondence item 11-9 
 

11) Certified letter dated 10/25/23 received 10/31/23 from the City of Long         Branch, re: 
Notice of Commencement of 30-Day Public Comment Period CAFRA Individual Permit 
Application/ PV Broadway, LLC/ Block 274 Lot 1 

 
12) Certified letter dated 10/30/23 received 11/02/23 from the City of Long Branch, re: 75 

Morrell St LLC/ Block 175 Lot 10/ Applicant needs to prove that residence was a Two-
Family Dwelling before 1969 



   
 

 
13) Certified letter received 11/03/23 from Keith A. Loughlin, Esq., re: 11 Sherman Ave/ 

Block 103 Lot 14, 15 & 16/ Applicant requesting subdivision to create two single family 
residences, NOT LBSA  

 
14) Copy of a letter dated 11/06/23 received 11/06/23 from Collier’s Engineering & Design 

to InSite Engineering, LLC, re: The Atlantic Club – Off Site Sewer Improvements 
 
15) Letter dated 11/07/23 received 11/07/23 from Colliers Engineering and Design, re: 

Engineer’s Status Report for November 2023 Meeting 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



   
 

IX. Report of Executive Director for the November 8, 2023 Authority Meeting 
 

Motion by______________, seconded by __________________ that the same, as 
prepared and submitted, is approved and ordered received and filed and made a part of 
the Minutes of this Meeting 
 

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco      Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
X. Report by Authority Counsel of the Activities of that Office and of Actions taken since 

October 18, 2023 
 

Motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________ that all actions 
taken and dispositions made by Authority Counsel, of and with regard to each and all of 
the foregoing items be, and they are in all respects, approved, confirmed and ratified. 
 

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco      Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
XI. Report by Authority Auditor of the Activities of that Office and of Actions taken since 

October 18, 2023 
 

Motion by ____________________, seconded by ________________ that all actions 
taken by Authority Auditor, of and with regard to each and all of the foregoing items be, 
and they are in all respects, approved, confirmed and ratified.  
 

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco      Morris 
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 

 
XII. Report by Authority Consulting Engineer of the Activities of that Office and of Actions 

taken since October 18, 2023 
 

A. Engineer’s Report on Redevelopment Projects  
B. Capital Improvement Program 
C. General Engineering 

 
See attached Engineer’s Status Report, dated November 7, 2023 

 
 Motion by ____________________, seconded by ________________ that all actions taken 
by Authority Consulting Engineer, of and with regard to each and all of the foregoing items 
be, and they are in all respects, approved, confirmed and ratified.  
  

  Booth  Brown  Riley  Larco   Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 



   
 

XIII. Transfers, if any 
 

 Resolution by ______________, seconded by _________________ that the List of        
Transfers, as submitted, is approved, ordered, received and filed and made a part of the 
Minutes of this Meeting.  
 

  Booth  Brown  Riley   Larco   Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 

XIV. As to Bills submitted for payment by Long Branch Sewerage Authority for the November 8, 
2023 Meeting 

 
Resolution by________________________, seconded by __________________that the 
Schedule of Bills for the month of October 2023 prepared and submitted by the Executive 
Director for approval, is found regular and payment of each and all thereof, be, and it is, 
hereby, authorized to be made out of funds of Authority as the same are, or may become, 
available for such purpose. 

 
  Booth  Brown  Riley  Larco   Morris  

 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 
 
 
XV. Report, if any, by Investment Committee  
 

Resolution by _________________, seconded by ____________________that        
the Investments be approved and made.  
  

  Booth  Brown  Riley  Larco   Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
XVI. Old Business 
  
 
XVII.   New Business  
 
 
XVIII. Adjournment at ____________ o'clock p.m.  
 

Motion by ____________________, seconded by ______________________ that the 
meeting be adjourned.  
 

  Booth  Brown  Riley  Larco   Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 



   
 

RESOLUTION 
  

________ offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption; seconded by 
__________ 
 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the "Authority") has heretofore 
advertised with Mantis Innovation for receipt of bids for the purchase of natural gas, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in response thereto the Authority has received bid results from Mantis 
Innovation, bid amounts as specified on the table attached hereto and made a part hereof, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with law, the Authority desires to award the contract for the 
purchase of natural gas for a period of two (2) years to the lowest responsible bidder. 
  
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that 
 
 1.  The Long Branch Sewerage Authority hereby awards its contract for the purchase of 
natural gas to UGI Energy Services, LLC in the amount of $0.60590 per therm for a period of two 
(2) years, beginning on December 1, 2023 and ending on December 31, 2025. 
 
 2.  The Authority is authorized to enter into a contract, attached hereon and made a part 
hereof, with UGI Energy Services, LLC for the purposes expressed hereinabove. 
 
 3.  The Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are authorized to sign any documents 
necessary to effectuate this resolution. 

 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley   -  
Mr. Booth  -  
Mr. Brown   -  
Mr. Larco  - 
Mrs. Morris  -  
 
Date: November 8, 2023 
R1.11-23 
Exhibits A, B 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
 

RESOLUTION 
  
________ offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption; seconded by 

__________ 
 

           WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (hereinafter the “Authority”) desires 
to appoint a Public Agency Compliance Officer as mandated by N.J.S.A. 10:5-31 et seq. under 
the direction of the Division of Contract Compliance and Equal Employment Opportunity, and 
 
           WHEREAS, as per the Division of Contract Compliance and Equal Employment 
Opportunity, this position must be appointed annually, and 
  

WHEREAS, notice of this appointment shall be forwarded to the State of New Jersey. 
 
           NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long Branch Sewerage Authority 
that Thomas Roguski is hereby designated Public Agency Compliance Officer (P.A.C.O.) for the 
Long Branch Sewerage Authority for the Year 2024.  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  -  
Mr. Booth  -  
Mr. Brown  -  
Mr. Larco   -  
Mrs. Morris   -  
   
Date:  November 8, 2023    
R2.11-23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
 

RESOLUTION 
 
________ offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption; seconded by 

__________ 
 

  WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority desires to hold a holiday party 
for its employees, board members and professionals on Wednesday, December 13, 2023, at 12 
p.m. in the conference room of the Authority Administration Offices; and, 
 
  WHEREAS, the holiday party allowance is not to exceed $1,500.00. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of the Long Branch 
Sewerage Authority that it approves the 2023 holiday party. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  -  
Mr. Booth   -  
Mr. Brown   -  
Mr. Larco  -  
Mrs. Morris   -  
 
Date:  November 8, 2023 
R3.11-23 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
 

RESOLUTION 
 
________ offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption; seconded by 

__________ 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Long Branch Sewerage Authority that it hereby ratifies and 
approves the hiring of Michael Henry as System Crew / Utility Crew effective November 9, 2023, 
or at a starting date thereafter as determined by the Executive Director, at a rate of compensation of 
$26.88 per hour.  This resolution and employment are conditional upon Michael Henry successfully 
completing a pre-employment physical test, drug test, alcohol test, commercial driver’s license 
check, and background check, all to the sole satisfaction of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority.  
This resolution and employment will become void should Michael Henry not successfully complete 
a pre-employment physical test, drug test, alcohol test, commercial driver’s license check, and 
background check, all to the sole satisfaction of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority.   
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley   - 
Mr. Booth  -  
Mr. Brown   -  
Mr. Larco   -   
Mrs. Morris   -  
 
Date: November 8, 2023 
R4.11-23 



   
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 ___________ offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption; seconded by 
_________ 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 8 of the Open Public Meetings Act, Chapter 231, P.L. 1975, permits 
the exclusion of the public from a meeting in various circumstances, and  
 
 WHEREAS, this public body is of the opinion that such circumstances presently exist, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Long Branch Sewerage Authority as 
follows: 
 

1.  The Public shall be excluded from discussion and action upon the hereinafter 
subject matters. 

 
2.  The general nature of the subject matter to be discussed is as follows: 
 
 
3.  It is anticipated at this time that the above-stated subject matters will be made 

public when the matters are resolved. 
 
4.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley   -  
Mr. Booth  -  
Mr. Brown  -  
Mr. Larco   -  
Mrs. Morris   -  
 
Date:   
ResExSess 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 





Capacity Assurance

 Present Flow Approved Project Est. Flow Conceptual Project Est. Flow
MGD

Aqua-Vista (20 + Retail) 0.00436 145 Brighton Avenue (12 + 0.9K) 0.00279
Oct-23 5.25 Casey Jones Redevelopment 0.00876 700 Joline Avenue 0.007
Sep-23 4.78 The Westwood (53) 0.0159 279 Third Avenue (154B + 11.1K) 0.01651
Aug-23 3.86 178 Chelsea Avenue School (34) 0.0102 175 Chelsea Avenue (33) 0.0099
Jul-23 4.10 Willow Ave. Redevelopment (104) 0.01670 305 Broadway (Office/Warehouse) 0.000878

Jun-23 3.80 27, 31, 35 & 37 Third Avenue 0.00244 Synagogue Add. - 295 Park Ave. 0.00521
May-23 4.77 Takanassee Lake (13) 0.00390 Bluffs (109) 0.0327
Apr-23 3.81 3 New Court Mixed Use (26 + 1.4K) 0.00794 215 Brighton Avenue (6) 0.0018
Mar-23 3.90 PAX Plaza (24 + retail/resturant) 0.02022 336 Branchport (40 + 4K) 0.0148
Feb-23 3.76 380 Division Street (14) 0.00420 Neptune Avenue (62 + 18.4K) 0.02044
Jan-23 3.98 SICA Development 0.002636 201 - 215 Third Avenue (40 + 8.4K) 0.01284
Dec-22 4.04 Ocean Gate at Cooper Avenue 0.03788 665 Second Avenue (22 + Mix Use) 0.00829
Nov-22 3.62 180 Brighton (24 + 5.5K) 0.00595 Reformed Church of LB Housing 0.00300

total 49.67 180 Morris Avenue (28 + Office) 0.00457 Franklin Avenue Subdivision (9) 0.00270
Onada Surf Club Hotel 0.00803 410 Broadway (94) 0.0282

Design 5.4 Broadway Arts Group (299 + 25K) 0.05850 671 Broadway 0.00066
Avg. 4.139 390-392 Ocean (132) 0.0396 394 Bath Avenue 0.0012
Approved 0.2518 Total Approved Project 0.251779 Total Conceptual Project 0.16892
Conceptual 0.1689 Approved & Conceptual 0.42070

total 4.560 95% of capacity is 5.13 Percent of 100% capacity available 16% 0.84    MGD
Percent of 95% capacity available 11% 0.57    MGD

Available 0.840133    Equivalent Units Available 2,800  @ 100% Capacity
in MGD       based on 300 gals/day/ unit

Equivalent Units Available 1,900  @ 95% Capacity
             based on 300 gals/day/ unit  
    











































































 
101 Crawfords Corner Road  
Suite 3400  
Holmdel New Jersey 07733 
Main: 877 627 3772 
 
 
November 7, 2023 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
 
 
Thomas Roguski, P.E., Executive Director 
Long Branch Sewerage Authority 
150 Joline Avenue 
P.O. Box 720 
Long Branch, New Jersey 07740 
 
Engineer's Status Report 
November 2023 Meeting 
Colliers Engineering & Design Project No. LBS-001 
 
Dear Mr. Roguski, 
 
The following is a report on the status of projects for which Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc. (CED) 
is responsible: 
 
1. Capital Projects 

 
a. Sanitary Sewer Railroad Crossing Study and Improvements (LBS-274) 

 
Notice to proceed was issued October 4, 2023.  Contractor is working on construction 
schedule.  

 
b. Hoey Pump Station Force Main Replacement (LBS-275) 

 
Final change order has been submitted to New Jersey Department of Environmental 
Protection (NJDEP).   

 
c. Sludge Holding System Modifications & Final Settling Tank Improvements (LBS-281) 

 
Hoist has been delivered and installed.  Thomas Controls is finishing punch list items.  Letter 
of substantial completion has been issued.  CED is finalizing as-built drawings and O&M 
manual.  

 
d. I/I Study and Improvements (LBS-284) 

 
NJDEP issued Authorization to advertise. Bids will be received on November 14, 2023. 

  



Project No. LBS-001  
November 7, 2023 
Page 2 | 6 

 
e. Solar Feasibility Study (LBS-0320) 

The report was presented at the August Authority meeting.  A meeting was held with New 
Jersey Natural Gas (NJNG) and further discussions will take place.  LBSA received a response 
from NJNG, who is still evaluating.  

 
f. Planning Document for Infrastructure Bill (LBS-001) 

 
The letters of intent and planning documents have been submitted to New Jersey 
Infrastructure Bank (NJIB).  NJIB acknowledged submittal.  Meeting was held with NJIB on 
August 22, 2023.  CED submitted revised Collection System Planning Report to NJIB.  Revised 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Planning Report has been uploaded to NJIB.  

 
g. WWTP Expansion Study (LBS-0329P)  

 
The proposal for this project is being prepared.  

 
h. Hoey Pump Station Improvements (LBS-0330) 

 
Kick-off meeting was held December 1, 2022, and a site visit was held on December 13, 2022. 
A secondary field meeting was held on April 5, 2023.  Draft plans were provided, and we are 
working on completion of plans.  Jersey Central Power & Light (JCPL) is able to provide upgrade 
to 480V.  Draft change in scope has been submitted.  Authority is evaluating best route for 
funding this project.  

 
i. 6th Avenue Sewer Replacement (LBS-0330P) 

 
Draft proposal has been submitted but will be further discussed pending best route for 
funding. 

 
j. GIS Upgrades (LBS-0002)   

 
This proposal was authorized at the June meeting.  A meeting was held on September 6, 2023.  
Ongoing. 

 
1. Active Escrow Projects  
 

a. The Reef (in construction) (LBS-278) 
 

Final tests and inspection pending final construction.  Performance bond reduction was 
recommended on January 12, 2023. 

  



Project No. LBS-001  
November 7, 2023 
Page 3 | 6 

 
b. Westwood Avenue (in construction) (LBS-285 – 298) 

 
One-year TWA extension approved April 2022. A pre-construction meeting was held 
January 27, 2023.  Shop drawings have been reviewed and returned.  
 

c. Takanassee (in construction) (LBS-290)  
 

Sanitary main and laterals installed.  Final testing to be performed.  Punchlist was sent to 
Applicant on June 7, 2021. 

 
d. Wave Spa (LBS-291) 

 
Review letter sent to Applicant on October 24, 2022.  Revised documents were received, and 
a new review letter was issued on January 24, 2023.  TWA has been received.  
 

e. Proposed 7-Eleven (LBS-292) 
 

Approval letter was sent to the Applicant on January 7, 2021.  
 

f. Beachfront LLC (LBS-294 – 981) 
 

Pre-construction meeting was held October 13, 2023. 
 

g. Broadway Place (Phase I/II) (LBS-295) 
 

Review letter was sent to Applicant on July 25, 2023.  Revised application is under review. CCTV 
videos are under review.  

 
h. The Belmont (in construction) (LBS-299) 

 
Pre-construction meeting was held July 6, 2022.  Shop drawings have been returned. 
Construction is ongoing. 

 
i. Pax Plaza (in construction) (LBS-305) 

 
Revised connection fees letter was provided to Applicant on February 22, 2022.  Shop drawings 
to date have been returned.  Pre-construction meeting was held April 26, 2023.  
 

j. Chelsea School (LBS-308) 
 

Pre-construction meeting was held on August 23, 2022.  Revised documents were approved 
on December 9, 2022. 

  



Project No. LBS-001  
November 7, 2023 
Page 4 | 6 

 
k. Rt. 36 Resurfacing (LBS-309) 

 
Review letter was sent on December 23, 2020 to New Jersey Department of Traffic (NJDOT). 

 
l. Pleasure Bay Park Pool Improvements (in construction) (LBS-310) 

 
Construction is substantially complete.  Final walkthrough to be scheduled, followed by project 
closeout.  As-builts to be submitted. 

 
m. NJDOT Bridge over Troutman’s Creek (LBS-315) 

 
A meeting with NJDOT took place on Friday, June 10, 2022. 

 
n. Ocean Gate (in construction) (LBS-0316) 

 
Revised site plans were approved July 5, 2022.  The CO was approved for Building 2.  Applicant 
asked for performance bond reduction.  

 
o. 175 Chelsea Avenue (LBS-0317) 

 
Review letter was sent on June 8, 2021 to the Applicant.  A revised submission was made, and 
a letter was sent to the Applicant on September 9, 2021, outlining remaining items to be 
submitted. 

 
p. 15 Atlantic Avenue Townhouse (in construction) (LBS-0318) 

 
Clay lateral is being replaced with PVC – expected week of June 12, 2023.  As-builts have been 
received and input to VueWorks.  

 
q. SICA Building (in construction) (LBS-0319) 

 
Pre-construction meeting was held April 27, 2023.  

 
r. 290 Ocean Avenue (LBS-0321) 

 
Review letter was sent on January 10, 2022 to the Applicant.  

 
s. 185 Morris Avenue (in construction) (LBS-0325) 

 
Preconstruction meeting was held July 15, 2022.  Awaiting submission of revised plans and 
shop drawings.  

  



Project No. LBS-001  
November 7, 2023 
Page 5 | 6 

 
t. 279 Third Avenue (LBS-0326) 

 
Review letter was sent to the Applicant on October 3, 2022. 
 

u. Long Branch Senior Center Improvements (in construction) (LBS-0327) 
 

Construction is in progress.  
 

v. 60 Atlantic Avenue, LLC (LBS-0333) 
 

Review letter was sent to the Applicant on August 24, 2023.  
 

w. The Atlantic Club (LBS-0334) 
 

On-site sewer TWA was submitted to DEP.  Off-site sewer improvements are under review.  
 

x. 380 Division Street (LBS-0003) 
 

Construction is complete. Closeout letter sent October 15, 2023. 
 

y. Santos Subdivision (LBS-0004) 
 

Review letter was sent to the Applicant on June 30, 2023.  
 

z. 156-164 Franklin Avenue (LBS-0005) 
 

Review letter was sent to the Applicant on August 1, 2023. 
 

aa. Second Ave Multi-Use Development (LBS-0336) 
 

Conditional Approval letter was sent to Applicant on September 27, 2023. 
 

bb. Enclave at West End (LBS-0337) 
 

Conditional Approval letter was sent to Applicant on September 27, 2023.  Revised plans have 
been submitted.  

 
cc. 169 Chelsea Avenue (LBS-0338) 

 
Conditional Approval letter was sent to Applicant on October 6, 2023. 
 

dd. 333-345 Second Avenue Proposed Townhouse Development (LBS-0339) 
 

Application is under review. Conditional approval letter to be sent to LBSA.  



Project No. LBS-001  
November 7, 2023 
Page 6 | 6 

 
Should you have any questions or require any additional information, please do not hesitate to 
contact me directly. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc. 
(DBA Maser Consulting) 
 
 
 
 
Jordan R. Volk, P.E., PMP 
Regional Manager 
 
JRV/lsl/mag 
 
r:\projects\i-l\lbs\lbs001\reports\monthly status updates\2023\231107_jrv_roguski_November meeting.docx 



 

 
 
 1 

  LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 
 
 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
 
 OCTOBER 18, 2023 
 
 
I. and II. Opening and Attendance of Meeting  
 
 A Regular Meeting of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority was called to order at 3:00 
p.m., prevailing time, on Wednesday, October 18, 2023, by the Executive Director, Thomas 
Roguski, both in person and electronically via telephonic communication conference call, attended 
by Mr. Riley, Mr. Booth, Mr. Brown, and Mr. Larco. Mrs. Morris arrived at 3:06 p.m.    
 
 In addition to the Members of the Authority hereinabove stated, there were present at said 
Regular Meeting the following professional attaches: Thomas Roguski, P.E., Executive Director; 
John L. Bonello, Esq., of the firm Manna & Bonello, P.A., Authority Counsel; Lauren Lechner and 
Jordan Volk, P.E., of the firm Colliers Engineering and Design, Authority Consulting Engineers; 
Charles J. Fallon, CPA, RMA, of the firm Fallon & Company LLP, Authority Auditor; and 
Elisabete Vieira, Secretary. 
 
 
III. Announcement Pursuant to New Jersey Open Public Meeting Act. 
 

Adequate Notice of this Regular Meeting and of all Regular Meetings for the 
Year 2023, has been provided by publication thereof in the Link on February 23, 
2023 as a “legal” advertisement and in the Asbury Park Press on February 19, 
2023 as a “legal” advertisement, and by forwarding duplicates thereof on 
February 15, 2023, to the Clerks of the City of Long Branch, Borough of West 
Long Branch and Borough of Monmouth Beach for filing in their respective 
offices and for posting in a public place in each such Municipality.  Notice of this 
Regular Meeting to be held both in-person and electronically has been provided 
electronically by posting thereof on the official website of the Long Branch 
Sewerage Authority pursuant to Public Law 2020, C.11. 

 
 
IV. Public Participation. 
 
 Mr. Vincent Lepore from 33 Ocean Terrace was present via telephonic communication.  
 
 Mr. Lepore stated that Correspondence Item #2 regarding Monmouth University was 
approved last week at the Council meeting.  He continued to state that this project will consist of 
three two story buildings with a proposed Bruce Springsteen Museum on the site.  The current 
police station is being moved to the West Long Branch side of the campus and the theater will 
remain at its present location.  
 



 

 
 
 2 

 Mr. Lepore reported that last Monday night, the Zoning Board approved the First Reformed 
Church application at 646 Broadway. This application is to connect the two existing buildings and 
to construct fifteen (15) affordable senior citizen housing units.  Mr. Lepore stated that there will 
also be a museum named after Vice President Garret Hobart which was at one time a City of Long 
Branch resident. 
 
 Mr. Lepore questioned if the resignation of the Authorities mechanic Mr. DePaola 
represents any liability to the Authority at all.  Mr. Roguski stated that it does not.  
 
 Mr. Lepore stated that the 2024 Authority budget resolution being presented today for 
adoption in December had a compensation of $2,500.00 for each commissioner. He questioned Mr. 
Fallen to explain the rate stabilization of $270,000.00.  Mr. Fallen explained that this budget is for 
2024 and due to higher inflation and in order not to raise the sewerage rates, the Authority chose to 
use money that was in their rate stabilization fund which is also called the surplus to offset the price 
increases.  
 
 Mr. Lepore had no further questions and thanked the Board. 
  
 On Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. Brown, and passed by the affirmative vote of all 
members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain; the Public Participation portion of the Meeting 
was closed. 
 
 Let the record reflect that Mrs. Morris arrived at 3:06 p.m. 
  
 
V. Miscellaneous Suggestions for the Good of the Authority 
 
 Mr. Vincent Lepore from 33 Ocean Terrace was present via telephonic communication.  
  
 Mr. Lepore mentioned that at the September meeting, the Board approved the Chamber of 
Commerce Dinner and now in this meeting is the approval for the AEA in Atlantic City. He 
questioned if the overnight stay is going to be at the Ceasers Atlantic City Casino. Mr. Roguski 
replied affirmatively. Mr. Lepore stated that for the good of the Authority, why is the overnight stay 
at a Casino Hotel instead of the Sheraton in Atlantic City, which would be a forty (40) percent 
savings.  Mr. Roguski replied that there are preferred rates for people attending the convention at 
Ceasers and that the Authority is not paying market rates. He continued to explain that it is also 
more convenient since you don’t have to pay for transportation or parking twice. Mr. Lepore stated 
that it’s unfair for the city taxpayers because the Sheraton has an express shuttle to all the casinos, 
and he will be on the lookout for the expenses recorded regarding this event.  
 
 Mr. Lepore then questioned where the Authority stands regarding Mr. Martone’s dedication.  
Mr. Roguski replied that, as mentioned at prior meetings, when Mr. Martone retired there was a 
ceremony in which the City’s Mayor was present. At that time, Mr. Martone was presented with a 
key to the city plus a plaque.  Mr. Lepore questioned why the Authority has yet to make a plaque for 
the building or perhaps name the building after Mr. Martone. Mr. Roguski replied that the Authority 
has never named buildings after anyone.  The buildings are A, B, and so on and that is how they 



 

 
 
 3 

should be kept.  Mr. Roguski explained that this was a decision made by the Commissioners.  
 
 On Motion by Mr. Morris seconded by Mr. Booth and passed by the affirmative vote of all 
members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain; the Miscellaneous Suggestions for the Good of 
the Authority portion of the Meeting was closed. 
 
 
VI. As to the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 20, 2023 
 
 On Motion by Mr. Brown, seconded by Mr. Booth, and passed by the affirmative vote of all 
members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain, the reading of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting 
of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority held on September, to be dispensed with and that such 
Minutes be, and they are hereby, approved as recorded and circulated. 
 
 
VII. As to the Minutes of the Executive Session held on September 20, 2023, if any  
 
 None 
  
 
VIII. Correspondence 
 
 The attached list of correspondence was reviewed by the Authority.  Individual items were 
dealt with as follows: 
 
 Mr. Roguski reported Correspondence Item #18 is a letter from Colliers Engineering & 
Design, regarding West End LB Development / 6 West End Court.  The sanitary sewer has been 
installed and conditions met.  There are a few minor items that need to be addressed, however this 
letter recommends conditional closeout of this project.  
 
 The following resolution was presented: 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
Mr. Brown offered the following Resolution and moved its 

adoption; seconded by Mr. Booth. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority 
(hereinafter the “Authority”) desires to approve and closeout the 
application, release the performance bond and release remaining 
escrow funds for 6 West End Court / Block 91, Lot 7.01, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority’s Engineer, Colliers 
Engineering and Design, has recommended approval and closeout 
of said application, release of said performance bond and release of 
said remaining escrow funds as per and conditional upon items 



 

 
 
 4 

referenced in their letter, dated October 6, 2023, attached hereto, 
and made a part hereof. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long 
Branch Sewerage Authority that the Authority hereby approves 
and closes out the application, releases said performance bond and 
releases said remaining escrow funds for 6 West End Court / Block 
91, Lot 7.01, as per the recommendation of the Authority’s 
Engineer and conditional upon items referenced in the above 
referenced letter, and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority 
Chairman and/or Executive Director are authorized to sign any 
documents necessary to effectuate this resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE  
Mr. Booth - AYE  
Mr. Brown     - AYE 
Mr. Larco - AYE 
Mrs. Morris  - AYE 
 
Date: October 18, 2023 
R1-10.23 
Exhibit A 

 
**** 

 
Mr. Roguski reported that Correspondence Item #22 is a similar letter from Colliers 

Engineering & Design recommending conditional closeout for the 380 Division Street Application. 
This building is located on the corner of Willow Ave and Division Street and has now been 
connected to the sanitary sewer.  

 
The following resolution was presented:  

 
RESOLUTION 

 
Mr. Riley offered the following Resolution and moved its 

adoption; seconded by Mrs. Morris. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority 
(hereinafter the “Authority”) desires to approve and closeout the 
application, release the performance bond and release remaining 
escrow funds for 380 Division St. / Block 190, Lot 7, and 
 



 

 
 
 5 

 WHEREAS, the Authority’s Engineer, Colliers 
Engineering and Design, has recommended approval and closeout 
of said application, release of said performance bond and release of 
said remaining escrow funds as per and conditional upon items 
referenced in their letter, dated October 16, 2023, attached hereto, 
and made a part hereof. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long 
Branch Sewerage Authority that the Authority hereby approves 
and closes out the application, releases said performance bond and 
releases said remaining escrow funds for 380 Division St. / Block 
190, Lot 7, as per the recommendation of the Authority’s Engineer 
and conditional upon items referenced in the above referenced 
letter, and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority 
Chairman and/or Executive Director are authorized to sign any 
documents necessary to effectuate this resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE   
Mr. Booth - AYE  
Mr. Brown     - AYE  
Mr. Larco - AYE 
Mrs. Morris  - AYE 
 
Date: October 18, 2023 
R2-10.23 
Exhibit B 

 
**** 

 
Next, Mr. Roguski stated that Correspondence Item #26 is a letter from Colliers 

Engineering & Design regarding Hoey Pump Station Force Main Installation Project. This is 
Change Order No. 3, a housekeeping change order where the project is ready to be closed out. 
This change order is a decrease in the cost of the project overall by $77,980.45.  
 
 The following resolution was presented: 
  

RESOLUTION 
 

 Mr. Brown offered the following Resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Riley.  
 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 



 

 
 
 6 

"Authority") has undertaken the Hoey Avenue Pump Station Force 
Main Replacement Project with Earle Asphalt Company; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Engineer, Colliers Engineering & 
Design, has recommended approval of Change Order No. 3, in their 
letter dated October 16, 2023, attached hereto and made a part 
hereof, which decreases the cost by $77,980.45 from $2,045,297.57 
to $1,967,317.12 as a result of this Change Order. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long 
Branch Sewerage Authority that Change Order No. 3, attached 
hereto and made a part hereof, is hereby approved and that the 
Authority Executive Director is authorized to execute any documents 
necessary to effectuate this Resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE  
Mr. Booth  - AYE  
Mr. Brown   - AYE 
Mr. Larco  - AYE  
Mrs. Morris   - AYE 
 
Date:  October 18, 2023 
R3.10-23 
Exhibit C 
 

**** 
Correspondence Item #27 is a letter from Colliers Engineering & Design regarding the 

Hoey Pump Station Force Main Installation Project recommending approval of the Final 
Payment Request and closeout of the project.  The final payment request is $39,346.34, which 
reflects the retainage that was held for the project.   
 
 The following resolution was presented: 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
Mr. Brown offered the following Resolution and moved its 

adoption; seconded by Mr. Riley. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority has 
received Partial Payment Request No. 7 - Final from Earle Asphalt 
Company for the Hoey Pump Station Force Main Replacement 
Project, and 
 
 WHEREAS, Partial Payment Request No. 7 - Final is in 
the amount of $39,346.34, and 



 

 
 
 7 

 WHEREAS, Partial Payment Request No. 7 - Final is the 
final payment which closes out the project, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Engineer, Colliers Engineering 
and Design, has recommended approval of Partial Payment 
Request No. 7 - Final, and has recommended that the Hoey Pump 
Station Force Main Replacement Project be approved and closed-
out and performance bond released, per their letter dated October 
16, 2023, attached hereto, and made a part hereof. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long 
Branch Sewerage Authority that it approves Partial Payment 
Request No. 7 – Final to Earle Asphalt Company in the amount of 
$39,346.34 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Hoey Pump 
Station Force Main Replacement Project is approved and closed-
out and performance bond released. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority 
Chairman and/or Executive Director are authorized to execute any 
documents or instruments necessary to effectuate this Resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE  
Mr. Booth   - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - AYE 
Mrs. Morris   - AYE 
 
Date:  October 18, 2023 
R4.10-23 
Exhibit D 

 
**** 

 
  
Mr. Roguski had nothing further to report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 8 

LIST OF CORRESPONDENCE FOR REGULAR MEETING 

LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 

OCTOBER 18, 2023 

 
1) Certified Public Notice dated 09/15/23 received 09/19/23 from West Long Branch 

Zoning, re: 63 Oceanport Ave / Block 12 Lot 16 (NOT LBSA) 
 

2) Letter dated 09/22/23 received 09/25/23 from the office of the City Clerk, re: Ordinance 
O-26-23: An ordinance establishing the Non-Profit Institution of Higher Learning 
Overlay District (MUO District) Block 70 Lots 1, 2, 3.02, 5.01, 6, 7, 7.01, 7.02, 7.03, 
7.04, 7.05, 7.06, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 17.01, 18.02, 19, 20 & 21 
 

3) Letter dated 09/25/23 received 09/25/23 from InSite Engineering, re: Off Site Sewer 
Improvements Plan/ Application for Treatment Works Approval Intersection of Second 
Avenue and South Bath Avenue  
 

4) Application for Conceptual Review dated 09/06/23 received 09/26/23, re: 333-345 
Second Ave/ Block 212 Lot 4,5,11/ 14 Units total  
 

5) Copy of Letter dated 09/27/23 received 09/27/23 from Colliers Engineering & Design to 
Mr. Ken Gold, re: 665 Second Ave LB, LLC. / Second Ave Multi-Use Development/ 
Block 89 Lot 13 / Block 91 Lot 5 
 

6) Copy of Letter dated 09/27/23 received 09/27/23 from Colliers Engineering & Design to 
Mr. David DeSio, re:  Enclave at West End/JCP Developers LLC/ 215 Brighton Ave/ 
Block 117 Lot 25 
 

7) Copy of letter dated 09/29/23 received 09/29/23 from Thomas Roguski to Bill Henning, 
Local 32 Unit Rep, re: Bargaining Agreement Negotiations 
 

8) Copy of letter dated 09/29/23 received 09/29/23 from Thomas Roguski to Cary Krand, 
Local 4-406 Rep, re: Bargaining Agreement Negotiations 
 

9) Certified Notice of Public Hearing dated 09/27/23 received 09/29/23 from Robert Witek, 
Esq. re: 95 Cooper Ave / Block 308 Lot 25/ Variance application seeking bulk variance 
relief 
 

10) Certified Notice of Hearing received 09/29/23 from the West Long Zoning Board, re: 26 
Wall St/ Block 28 Lot 12.01/ NOT LBSA  
 

11) Copy of letter dated 09/29/23 received 10/02/23 from Colliers Engineering & Design to 
John J. Ploskonka, re: Santos Subdivision/ 117 Conover Place/ Block 336 Lot 1 
 



 

 
 
 9 

12) Copy of letter dated 10/02/23 received 10/02/23 from Colliers Engineering & Design to 
Eric Ballou, re: Lower Broadway Place/ PV Broadway LLC / Block 274 Lot 1 Block 
283.01 Lots 1.01 & 1.02 Block 311 Lots 1.01 & 1.02 
 

13) Certified Notice of Hearing dated 09/28/23 received 10/02/23 from Krenkel & Krenkel, 
LLC., re: Notice to Property Owners within 200 feet of 75 North Lake Drive/ Block 63 
Lot 1/ Applicant seeks a variance for placement of pool 
 

14) Certified Notice of Hearing dated 09/28/23 received 10/02/23 from Krenkel & Krenkel, 
LLC., re: Notice to property owner within 200 feet of 639 Overton/ Block 163 Lot 22/ 
639 Overton Place/ Applicant seeks variance for existing pool also existing shed to be 
removed 
 

15) Copy of letter dated 10/04/23 received 10/02/23 from Colliers Engineering & Design to 
Arold Construction Co. Inc., re: Sanitary Sewer Railroad Crossing Lining Project 
 

16) Letter dated 10/06/23 received 10/06/23 from State of New Jersey DEP, re: New Jersey 
Water Bank/ Inflow/ Infiltration Improvements / Project No. S340336-09/ Authorization 
to Advertise  
 

17) Copy of letter dated 10/06/23 received 10/06/23 from Colliers Engineering & Design, re: 
169 Chelsea Ave / Block 278 Lot 3 
 

18) Letter dated 10/06/23 received 10/10/23 from Colliers Engineering & Design, re: Close 
Out / West End LB Development, LLC/ 6 West End Court / Block 91 Lot 7.01/  
 

19) Certified letter received 10/10/23 from Paul Edinger, Esq., re: 394 Bath Ave/ Block 183 
Lot 17/ Applicant applies to subdivide a single lot into four (4) individuals lots for new 
erecting new residential dwellings 
 

20) Certified letter dated 10/02/23 received 10/10/23 from Ansell Grimm & Aaron, re: 
Approval to keep tent up to October 31, 2023 (NOT LBSA) 
 

21) Letter dated 10/12/23 received 10/12/23 from InSite Engineering, re: The Atlantic Club 
Conditional Approval/ Colliers File # LBS-0334/ 390-392 Ocean Ave/ Block 215 Lots 3 
& 5.01 
 

22) Letter dated 10/16/23 received 10/16/23 from Colliers Engineering & Design, re: 380 
Division Street / Block 190 Lot 7 Closing Out Project  
 

23) Certified letter dated 10/12/23 received from Ansell Grimm  & Aaron, re: Block 93 Lot 
4/ 25 Bampton Place/  NOT LBSA  
 

24) Certified letter dated 10/12/23 received from Ansell Grimm  & Aaron, re: Block 23 Lot 
14/ 105 Hollywood Ave / NOT LBSA  
 



 

 
 
 10 

25) Certified letter dated 10/11/23 received 10/13/23 from United Steelworkers Unity and 
Strength for Workers, re: Union Workers negotiation 
 

26) Letter dated 10/16/23 received 10/16/23 from Colliers Engineering & Design, re: Hoey 
Pump Station Force Main Replacement / Change Order Request No.3 
 

27) Letter dated 10/16/23 received 10/16/23 from Colliers Engineering & Design, re: Hoey 
Pump Station Force Main Replacement / Recommendation of Closeout and Final 
Payment No. 7 
 

28) Letter dated 10/17/23 received 10/17/23 from Colliers Engineering & Design, re: 
Engineers Status Report for October 2023 Meeting.  
 

 
 On Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. Brown, and passed by the affirmative vote of 
all members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain, the attached List of Correspondence was 
ordered received and filed. 
 
 
IX. Report of the Executive Director for the October 18, 2023, Authority Meeting  
 
 Mr. Roguski stated that the Authority treated an average daily flow of 4.78 MGD and has 
met all limits of our discharge permit. 
 
  Mr. Roguski reported that the NJAEA Annual Conference will be held November 14 & 
15, 2023.  He stated that this is a fantastic event with much useful knowledge. Several employees 
and Board Members have expressed a desire to attend to obtain their continuing education hours 
required to hold their professional, operator and collection licenses and for educational/training 
purposes.  
 
 The following resolution was presented: 

  
RESOLUTION 

 
 Mr. Brown offered the following resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Riley. 
 
 WHEREAS, Long Branch Sewerage Authority employees 
and Authority Commissioners desire to attend the NJAEA Annual 
Conference to be held November 14, 2023, and November 15, 2023, 
at Caesar’s in Atlantic City, and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is to the benefit of the Long Branch 
Sewerage Authority to have its employees and Authority 
Commissioners to continue their education and maintain licenses. 
 



 

 
 
 11 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE 
LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE AUTHORITY THAT: 
 
 1.  The aforementioned employees and Authority 
Commissioners are authorized to attend the above referenced 
NJAEA Annual Conference subject to the Executive Director’s 
scheduling and approval. 
 
 2.  The Authority will pay all registration fees for this 
purpose including accommodation. 
 
3.  The Authority will allow a maximum amount of $100.00 per day 
per person for           reimbursable expenses. 
 
 4.  The Authority will provide all transportation costs for 
attending the meeting. 
 
 5.  Participants will follow the rules for "Schooling" 
covered in the appropriate Article in their Contract. 
  
 6.  Any Authority Commissioners are also authorized to 
attend if they so desire under the same terms and conditions.    
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley    - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - AYE 
Mrs. Morris   - AYE 
 
 
Date: October 18, 2023 
R5.10-23 

 
**** 

  
 Mr. Roguski stated that bids for the Long Branch Sewerage Authority’s 2024 Annual 
Contracts have been received.  It is recommended the Contracts be awarded by the Board to the 
respective lowest responsible bidders as follows: 
 
1. Contract for Sand, Grit & Bar Screenings  Freehold Cartage $1,775 per container 

2. Contract for Dry Polymer    Polydyne, Inc.  $2.25 per pound 

3. Contract for Emulsion Polymer   Polydyne, Inc.  $1.61 per pound 



 

 
 
 12 

4. Contract for Alum. Hydroxide Chloride  Coyne Chemical Co. $3.51 per gallon  

5. Contract for Sodium Hypochlorite   Univar Solutions $2.53 per gallon 

6. Contract for Furnishing Pump & Motor  
Repairs and Purchase of New Pumps &  
Motors      A.C. Shultes, Inc. $24,300.00 total  

7. Contract for Road Restoration & Infrared  
Paving      Power Patch, Inc. $18,350.00 total  

8. Contract for Magnesium Hydroxide Slurry Premier Magnesia $4.625 per gallon  

9. Contract for Electrical Maintenance  
Services      Electro Maintenance $84,000.00 total  

10. Contract for Odor Control Media   Nichem Co.  $21,282.00 total  

11. Contract for HVAC Maintenance   Unitemp Mechanical $19,030.00 total 

 
 Mr. Roguski inquired if the resolutions can be read collectively, and Mr. Bonello 
responded affirmatively.  
 
 The following resolutions were presented: 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
 Mrs. Morris offered the following resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown.  
 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 
"Authority") has heretofore advertised for receipt of bids for 
Removal, Transport and Disposal of Sand, Grit, and Bar Screen 
Screenings to an approved site; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in response thereto the Authority has received 
bids from the parties and bid amounts as specified on the list attached 
hereto and made a part hereof, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with law, the Authority is 
required to award the contract for Removal, Transport and Disposal 
of Sand, Grit and Bar Screen Screenings to the lowest responsible 
bidder, and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Authority Executive Director has certified 
that there are funds available for this purchase as per the certification 
attached to this resolution and made a part hereof. 
 
 



 

 
 
 13 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that 
 
 1.  The Long Branch Sewerage Authority hereby awards its 
contract for Removal, Transport and Disposal of Sand, Grit and Bar 
Screen Screenings to Freehold Cartage, Inc. in the amount of 
$1,775.00 per 20-yard container removed and disposed of, subject to 
the bidder complying with all of the requirements of the terms and 
conditions of the Bid Specifications prepared in connection with this 
contract and included in Notice to Bidders. 
 
 2.  The Authority is authorized to enter into a contract with 
Freehold Cartage, Inc. for the purposes expressed hereinabove. 
 
 3.  The Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are 
authorized to sign any documents needed to effectuate this 
resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL:   
    
 
Mr. Riley   - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - AYE  
Mrs. Morris  - AYE 
 
Date:  October 18, 2023 
R6.10-23 
Exhibits E, F  
 

**** 
   

RESOLUTION 
 

 Mrs. Morris offered the following resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 
"Authority") has heretofore advertised for receipt of bids for Dry 
Polymer, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in response thereto the Authority has received 
bids from the parties and bid amounts as specified on the list 
attached hereto and made a part hereof, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with law, the Authority is 
required to award the contract for Dry Polymer to the lowest 



 

 
 
 14 

responsible bidder, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Executive Director has certified 
that there are funds available for this purchase as per the 
certification attached to this resolution and made a part hereof. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that 
 
 1.  The Long Branch Sewerage Authority hereby awards its 
contract for Dry Polymer to Polydyne, Inc. in the amount of $2.25 
per pound, subject to the bidder complying with all the 
requirements of the terms and conditions of the Bid Specifications 
prepared in connection with this contract and included in Notice to 
Bidders. 
 
 2.  The Authority is authorized to enter into a contract with 
Polydyne, Inc. for the purposes expressed hereinabove. 
 
 3.  The Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are 
authorized to sign any documents needed to effectuate this 
resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL:      
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - AYE 
Mrs. Morris   - AYE 
 
Date:  October 18, 2023 
R7.10-23 
Exhibits G, H  

**** 
  

RESOLUTION 
 
 Mrs. Morris offered the following resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 
"Authority") has heretofore advertised for receipt of bids for 
Emulsion Type Polymer, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in response thereto the Authority has received 
bids from the parties and bid amounts as specified on the list attached 
hereto and made a part hereof, and 



 

 
 
 15 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with law, the Authority is 
required to award the contract for Emulsion Type Polymer to the 
lowest responsible bidder, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Executive Director has certified 
that there are funds available for this purchase as per the certification 
attached to this resolution and made a part hereof. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that 
 
 1.  The Long Branch Sewerage Authority hereby awards its 
contract for Emulsion Type Polymer to Polydyne, Inc. in the amount 
of $1.61 per pound, subject to the bidder complying with all of the 
requirements of the terms and conditions of the Bid Specifications 
prepared in connection with this contract and included in Notice to 
Bidders. 
 
 2.  The Authority is authorized to enter into a contract with 
Polydyne Inc. for the purposes expressed hereinabove. 
 
 3.  The Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are 
authorized to sign any documents needed to effectuate this 
resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL:      
 
Mr. Riley   - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco  - AYE 
Mrs. Morris   - AYE 
 
Date:  October 18, 2023 
R8.10-23 
Exhibits I, J  
   

**** 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 Mrs. Morris offered the following resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown. 

 
WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 

"Authority") has heretofore advertised for receipt of bids for 
Furnishing and Delivery of Aluminum Hydroxide Chloride, and 

 



 

 
 
 16 

WHEREAS, in response thereto the Authority has received 
bids from the parties and bid amounts as specified on the list attached 
hereto and made a part hereof, and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with law, the Authority is 

required to award the contract for furnishing and delivery of 
aluminum hydroxide to the lowest responsible bidder, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority Executive Director has certified 

that there are funds available for this purchase as per the certification 
attached to this resolution hereto and made a part hereof. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that 
 
1.  The Long Branch Sewerage Authority hereby awards its 

contract for Furnishing and Delivery of Aluminum Hydroxide to 
Coyne Chemical Co., Inc. in the amount of $3.51 per gallon, subject 
to the bidder complying will all the requirements of the terms and 
conditions of the Bid Specifications prepared in connection with this 
contract and included in Notice to Bidders. 

 
2.  The Authority is authorized to enter into a contract with 

Coyne Chemical Co., Inc. for the purposes expressed hereinabove. 
 
3.  The Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are 

authorized to sign any documents needed to effectuate this 
resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL:      
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - AYE 
Mrs. Morris  - AYE 
 
Date:  October 18, 2023 
R9.10-23 
Exhibit K, L 
    **** 
       

RESOLUTION 
 
 Mrs. Morris offered the following resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 



 

 
 
 17 

"Authority") has heretofore advertised for receipt of bids for Sodium 
Hypochlorite, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in response thereto the Authority has received 
bids from the parties and bid amounts as specified on the list attached 
hereto and made a part hereof, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with law, the Authority is 
required to award the contract for Sodium Hypochlorite to the lowest 
responsible bidder, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Executive Director has certified 
that there are funds available for this purchase as per the certification 
attached to this resolution and made a part hereof. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that 
 
 1.  The Long Branch Sewerage Authority hereby awards its 
contract for Sodium Hypochlorite to Univar Solutions USA Inc. in 
the amount of $2.53 per gallon, subject to the bidder complying with 
all the requirements of the terms and conditions of the Bid 
Specifications prepared in connection with this contract and included 
in Notice to Bidders. 
 
 2.  The Authority is authorized to enter into contract with 
Univar Solutions USA Inc. for the purposes expressed hereinabove. 
 
 3.  The Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are 
authorized to sign any documents needed to effectuate this 
resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL:      
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE  
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - AYE  
Mrs. Morris   - AYE 
 
Date:  October 18, 2023 
R10.10-23 
Exhibits M, N 
 

**** 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 18 

RESOLUTION 
 
 Mrs. Morris offered the following resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown.  
 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 
"Authority") has heretofore advertised for receipt of bids for 
Furnishing Pump & Motor Repairs and Purchase of New Pumps & 
Motors; and 
  
 WHEREAS, in response thereto, the Authority has received 
bids from the parties and bid amounts as specified on the list attached 
hereto and made a part hereof, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with law, the Authority is 
required to award the contract for Furnishing Pump & Motor Repairs 
and Purchase of New Pumps & Motors to the lowest responsible 
bidder, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Executive Director has certified 
that there are funds available for this purpose, as per the certification 
attached hereto and made a part hereof, and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 
 
 1.  The Long Branch Sewerage Authority hereby awards its 
contract for Furnishing Pump & Motor Repairs and Purchase of New 
Pumps & Motors to A.C. Schultes, Inc. in the amount of $24,300.00 
subject to the bidder complying with all the requirements of the 
terms and conditions of the Bid Specifications prepared in 
connection with this contract and included in Notice to Bidders. 
  
 2.  The Authority is authorized to enter into a contract with 
A.C. Schultes, Inc for the purpose-expressed hereinabove. 
 
 3.  The Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are 
authorized to sign any documents needed to effectuate this 
resolution. 
   
ROLL CALL:      
 
Mr. Riley   - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco  - AYE 
Mrs. Morris  - AYE 
 



 

 
 
 19 

Date:  October 18, 2023 
R11.10-23 
Exhibits O, P 
 
    **** 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 Mrs. Morris offered the following resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 
"Authority") has heretofore advertised for receipt of bids for Road 
Restoration & Infrared Paving Restoration, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in response thereto, the Authority has received 
bids from the parties and bid amounts as specified on the list attached 
hereto and made a part hereof, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with law, the Authority is 
required to award the contract for Road Restoration & Infrared 
Paving Restoration to the lowest responsible bidder, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Executive Director has certified 
that there are funds available for this purpose, as per the certification 
attached hereto and made a part hereof, and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 
 
 1.  The Long Branch Sewerage Authority hereby awards its 
contract for Road Restoration Infrared Paving Restoration to Power 
Patch, Inc. in the amount of $18,350.00, subject to the bidder 
complying with all the requirements of the terms and conditions of 
the Bid Specifications prepared in connection with this contract and 
included in Notice to Bidders. 
  
 2.  The Authority is authorized to enter into a contract with 
Power Patch, Inc. for the purpose-expressed hereinabove. 
 
 3.  The Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are 
authorized to sign any documents needed to effectuate this 
resolution. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 20 

ROLL CALL:      
 

Mr. Riley  - AYE  
Mr. Booth  - AYE  
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - AYE 
Mrs. Morris   - AYE  
 
Date:  October 18, 2023 
R12.10-23 
Exhibits Q, R 

 
 

**** 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 Mrs. Morris offered the following resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown. 

 
WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 

"Authority") has heretofore advertised for receipt of bids for 
Magnesium Hydroxide Slurry, and 

 
WHEREAS, in response thereto the Authority has received 

bids from the parties and bid amounts as specified on the list attached 
hereto and made a part hereof, and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with law, the Authority is 

required to award the contract for Magnesium Hydroxide Slurry to 
the lowest responsible bidder, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority Executive Director has certified 

that there are funds available for this purchase as per the certification 
attached to this resolution hereto and made a part hereof. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that 
 
1.  The Long Branch Sewerage Authority hereby awards its 

contract for Magnesium Hydroxide Slurry to Premier Magnesia, 
LLC, in the amount of $4.625 per gallon, subject to the bidder 
complying will all the requirements of the terms and conditions of 
the Bid Specifications prepared in connection with this contract and 
included in Notice to Bidders. 

 
2.  The Authority is authorized to enter into a contract with 

Premier Magnesia, LLC, for the purposes expressed hereinabove. 



 

 
 
 21 

3.  The Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are 
authorized to sign any documents needed to effectuate this 
resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL:      
 
Mr. Riley   - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - AYE 
Mrs. Morris   - AYE 
 
Date:  October 18, 2023 
R13.10-23 
Exhibit S, T   

**** 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 Mrs. Morris offered the following resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 
"Authority") has heretofore advertised for receipt of bids for 
Electrical Maintenance Services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in response thereto the Authority has received 
bids from the parties and bid amounts as specified on the list attached 
hereto and made a part hereof, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with law, the Authority is 
required to award the contract for Electrical Maintenance Services to 
the lowest responsible bidder, and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Authority Executive Director has certified 
that there are funds available for this purchase as per the certification 
attached to this resolution and made a part hereof. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that 
 
 1.  The Long Branch Sewerage Authority hereby awards its 
contract for Electrical Maintenance Services to Electro Maintenance, 
Inc. in the amount of $84,000.00 subject to the bidder complying 
with all the requirements of the terms and conditions of the Bid 
Specifications prepared in connection with this contract and included 
in Notice to Bidders. 
 



 

 
 
 22 

 2.  The Authority is authorized to enter into a contract with 
Electro Maintenance, Inc. and Construction Corp. for the purposes 
expressed herein above. 
 
 3.  The Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are 
authorized to sign any documents needed to effectuate this 
resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL:      
 
Mr. Riley   - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - AYE 
Mrs. Morris   - AYE 
 
Date:  October 18, 2023 
R14.10-23 
Exhibits U, V   
 
    **** 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

 Mrs. Morris offered the following resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 
"Authority") has heretofore advertised for receipt of bids for 
Furnishing and Delivering Odor Control Media, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in response thereto the Authority has received 
bids from the parties and bid amounts as specified on the list 
attached hereto and made a part hereof, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with law, the Authority is 
required to award the contract for Furnishing and Delivering Odor 
Control Media to the lowest responsible bidder, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Executive Director has certified 
that there are funds available for this purchase as per the 
certification attached to this resolution and made a part hereof. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that 
 
 1.  The Long Branch Sewerage Authority hereby awards its 
contract for Furnishing and Delivering Odor Control Media to 



 

 
 
 23 

Nichem Co. in the amount of $21,282.00, subject to the bidder 
complying with all the requirements of the terms and conditions of 
the Bid Specifications prepared in connection with this contract 
and included in Notice to Bidders. 
 
 2.  The Authority is authorized to enter into a contract with 
Nichem Co. for the purposes expressed hereinabove. 
 
 3.  The Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are 
authorized to sign any documents needed to effectuate this 
resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL:      
 
Mr. Riley   - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - AYE 
Mrs. Morris   - AYE 
 
Date:  October 18, 2023 
R15.10-23 
Exhibits W, X  
 
    **** 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 Mrs. Morris offered the following resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 
"Authority") has heretofore advertised for receipt of bids for HVAC 
Maintenance Services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in response thereto the Authority has received 
bids from the parties and bid amounts as specified on the list attached 
hereto and made a part hereof, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with law, the Authority is 
required to award the contract for HVAC Maintenance Services to 
the lowest responsible bidder, and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Authority Executive Director has certified 
that there are funds available for this purchase as per the certification 
attached to this resolution and made a part hereof. 
 



 

 
 
 24 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that 
 
 1.  The Long Branch Sewerage Authority hereby awards its 
contract to Unitemp Mechanical Degrees, LLC in the amount of 
$19,030.00 subject to the bidder complying with all the requirements 
of the terms and conditions of the Bid Specifications prepared in 
connection with this contract and included in Notice to Bidders. 
 
 2.  The Authority is authorized to enter into a contract with 
Unitemp Mechanical Degrees, LLC for the purposes expressed 
hereinabove. 
 
 3.  The Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are 
authorized to sign any documents needed to effectuate this 
resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL:      
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - AYE 
Mrs. Morris  - AYE 
 
Date:  October 18, 2023 
R16.10-23 
Exhibits Y, Z 

**** 
 
 Mr. Roguski stated that at the last Board Meeting, there was a resolution to join the North 
Jersey Wastewater Cooperative Purchasing Program.  This month there is a similar resolution for 
the Authority to become a member of the Houston-Galveston Area Council Cooperative 
Purchasing Program, also known as HGACBuy. This would allow the Authority access to 
economies of scale for select products and services.  Mr. Roguski advised the Board that every 
time a bid is over the bid threshold, approval will be required from the Board. 
 
 The following resolution was presented:  
 

RESOLUTION 
 
Mr. Brown offered the following Resolution and moved its 

adoption; seconded by Mr. Booth. 
 
WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority hereby 

desires to become a member of the Houston-Galveston Area 
Council Cooperative Purchasing Program, also known as 
HGACBuy, effective October 18, 2023; and 



 

 
 
 25 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long 
Branch Sewerage Authority that the Long Branch Sewerage 
Authority is authorized to join the Houston-Galveston Area 
Council Cooperative Purchasing Program, also known as 
HGACBuy, and is authorized to execute an application and/or 
agreement for such membership. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority 

Chairman and/or Executive Director are authorized to sign any 
documents necessary to effectuate this resolution. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley   - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - AYE 
Mrs. Morris   - AYE 
 
Date:  October 18, 2023 
R17.10-23 

 
**** 

 
 Mr. Roguski reported that the proposed 2024 Authority Budget has been prepared and 
will be presented to the Board for consideration during the Authority’s Auditor portion of the 
meeting. 
 
 Mr. Roguski stated that one of the Authority’s Mechanics, Mr. John DePaola, has resigned.  
The Authority is currently seeking to fill two positions one is a WWTP Operation position and 
the other is a Collection Crew/Utility Crew position.  Job advertisements will be posted to 
current employees and on a career classifieds website (Indeed).   
 
 Mr. Roguski explained that in the past two months, the Authority has had two 
resignations, neither had anything to do with the Authority but instead with each individual’s 
personal preference. Mr. Roguski further stated that it’s very difficult to find skilled labor from 
another Authority as they would not want to forgo all their accrued time and seniority, which is 
understandable. Mr. Roguski has been going out to other industries and meeting people to 
recruit, but he stated that it’s been a challenge to find the right candidate. 
 

Mr. Roguski had nothing further to report.  
 
 On Motion by Mrs. Morris, seconded by Mr. Brown and passed by the affirmative vote of 
all members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain, the report of the Executive Director, as 
prepared and submitted, is hereby approved, and ordered received and filed and made part of the 
Minutes of this Meeting. 



 

 
 
 26 

X. Report by Authority Counsel of the Activities of that Office and of Actions 
 taken since September 20, 2023 
 
 Mr. Bonello reported that during the month he monitored the information given by the 
Executive Director and had nothing additional to add. 
 
 Mr. Bonello had nothing further to report.  
 

On Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. Brown, and passed by the affirmative vote of 
all members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain, all actions taken, and dispositions made by 
the Authority Counsel of and regarding each and all the foregoing items be, and they are in all 
respects approved, confirmed, and ratified. 
 
 
XI. Report by Authority Auditor of the Activities of that Office and of Actions taken 
 since September 20, 2023 
 
 Mr. Fallon stated that the 2024 Budget document is ready for approval. The process is, 
once it’s approved, the budget will go to the State, then be adopted after State approval. 
 
            He reported that the 2024 Budget was presented today and shows revenues of $8,133,896.00 
and expenses of $8,403,896.00 for a total net position of $270,000.00.  Mr. Fallon stated that when 
compared to last year, the Authority expects the revenues to be greater by $141,000.00, however the 
expenses are also expected to be greater than last year’s budget. This does not mean that all 
$270,000.00 will be spent, but for budget purposes the amounts must be shown as enclosed.  
 
            Mr. Larco questioned the projected debt service and wanted to have a better understanding 
of the rise and fall. Mr. Fallen explained that it has to do with the bond money regarding the interest 
and principal, as the principal drops the interest gets less and or disappears.  Mr. Larco continued 
and asked if these were hard numbers, and Mr. Fallen responded affirmatively.  Mr. Larco stated 
that if he has more questions or concerns, he will reach out to Mr. Roguski and Mr. Fallon.     
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 27 

2024 AUTHORITY BUDGET RESOLUTION 
Long Branch Sewerage Authority 

 
FISCAL YEAR: FROM:  January 1, 2024 TO: December 31, 2024 

 
WHEREAS, the Annual Budget and Capital Budget for the Long Branch Sewerage Authority for the fiscal year 
beginning, January 1, 2024, and ending December 31, 2024, attached hereto and made a part hereof, has been presented 
before the governing body of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority at its open public meeting of October 18, 2023; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Annual Budget as introduced reflects Total Revenues of $8,133,896.00 Total Appropriations, including 
any Accumulated Deficit if any, of $8,403,896.00 and Total Unrestricted Net Position utilized of $270,000.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Capital Budget as introduced reflects Total Capital Appropriations of $7,159,500.00 and Total 
Unrestricted Net Position planned to be utilized as funding thereof, of none; and 
 
WHEREAS, the schedule of rates, fees and other charges in effect will produce sufficient revenues, together with all 
other anticipated revenues to satisfy all obligations to the holders of bonds of the Authority, to meet operating expenses, 
capital outlays, debt service requirements, and to provide for such reserves, all as may be required by law, regulation or 
terms of contracts and agreements; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Capital Budget/Program, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:31-2, does not confer any authorization to raise or 
expend funds; rather it is a document to be used as part of the said Authority's planning and management objectives.  
Specific authorization to expend funds for the purposes described in this section of the budget, must be granted 
elsewhere; by bond resolution, by a project financing agreement, by resolution appropriating funds from the Renewal and 
Replacement Reserve or other means provided by law. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the governing body of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority, at an open 
public meeting held on October 18, 2023, that the Annual Budget, including all related schedules, and the Capital 
Budget/Program of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority for the fiscal year beginning, January 1, 2024, and ending 
December 31, 2024, is hereby approved; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the anticipated revenues as reflected in the Annual Budget are of sufficient 
amount to meet all proposed expenditures/expenses and all covenants, terms and provisions as stipulated in the said 
Authority's outstanding debt obligations, capital lease arrangements, service contracts, and other pledged agreements; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the governing body of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority will consider the 
Annual Budget and Capital Budget/Program for adoption on December 20, 2023 
 
_________________________________________  October 18, 2023 
(Secretary’s Signature)    
 
Governing Body   Recorded Vote 
    Member:                 Aye                  Nay               Abstain          Absent 

 
Mr. Riley 
Mr. Booth  
Mr. Brown  

  Mr.  Larco  
  Mrs. Morris  
Date:  October 18, 2023 
R18.10-23 
Exhibit AA 
 
  



 

 
 
 28 

 Mr.  Fallon had nothing further to report.  
  
 On Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mrs. Morris, and passed by the affirmative vote of 
all members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain, all actions taken, and dispositions made by 
Authority Auditor of and about each and all the foregoing items be, and they are in all respects, 
approved, confirmed, and ratified. 
 
 
XII.  Report by Authority Consulting Engineer of the Activities of that Office and of 
Actions taken Since September 20, 2023 
 
  Ms. Lechner reported that the Sanitary Sewer Railroad Crossing Study and Improvements 
Project Contracts have been provided for signature. The Pre-Construction meeting was held 
September 20, 2023, and the notice to proceed was issued October 4, 2023. 
 
 The Hoey Pump Station Force Main Replacement Project final change order and close out 
has been approved at this meeting. 
 
  

Regarding the Sludge Holding System Modifications & Final Settling Tank Improvements 
Project, the majority of the punchlist items have been addressed. This project is expected to be 
finished over the next month or so. 
 
 Regarding the I/I Study and Improvements Project, the NJDEP has issued Authorization to 
Advertise.  Bids will be received on November 14, 2023. 
 
 Tere is no update study currently regarding the Solar Feasibility Study. 
 
 Regarding the Planning Document for Infrastructure Bill, letters of intent and planning 
documents have been submitted to NJIB. NJIB acknowledged the submittal and a meeting with 
NJIB was held back on August 22, 2023.  CED submitted a revised Collection System planning 
report to NJIB. The revised Wastewater Treatment Plant Planning Report will be uploaded to NJIB 
this week. 
 
 The proposal for the WWTP Expansion Study is being prepared. 
 
 Regarding the Hoey Pump Station Improvements Project, some additional scope is being 
added. A draft change order was prepared to be discussed, and then submitted with the 6th Avenue 
Sewer Replacement proposal. 
 
 Finally, the GIS Upgrades project is currently ongoing.  
 
 Ms. Lechner had nothing further to report. 
  
 
 



 

 
 
 29 

 On Motion by Mr. Riley seconded by Mr. Brown and passed by the affirmative vote of 
all members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain, all actions taken, and dispositions made by 
Authority Consulting Engineer of and about each and all the foregoing items be, and they are in 
all respects, approved, confirmed, and ratified. 
 
 
XIII. Transfers, if any. 

 
The transfers are as listed. 
 

 The following Resolution was moved by Mr. Brown, seconded by Mr. Booth, and passed 
by all affirmative vote off all members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain, approving the 
Authority Transfers for the month of September 2023 as listed. 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE 
AUTHORITY IN SESSION AT A REGULAR MEETING 
THEREOF ON THIS 18TH DAY OF OCTOBER 2023 
PURSUANT TO NOTICE AT WHICH AT LEAST A QUORUM 
IS PRESENT THAT THE AUTHORITY HEREBY APPROVES 
THE TRANSFERS MADE FOR THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 
2023 AS SUBMITTED BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND 
ORDERS SAID REPORT RECEIVED AND FILED. 

 
 
XIV. As to Bills submitted for payment by Long Branch Sewerage Authority for the 
 Month of September 2023 
 
 The following Resolution was moved by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. Brown, and passed 
by the affirmative vote of all members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain.  

 
RESOLUTION 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE 
AUTHORITY IN SESSION AT A REGULAR MEETING 
THEREOF ON THIS 18th DAY OF OCTOBER 2023 
PURSUANT TO NOTICE AT WHICH AT LEAST A QUORUM 
IS PRESENT, the List of Bills for the month of September 2023 
are found regular and payment of each and all, thereof is 
authorized to be paid out of the Revolving Fund, General Funds, 
Revenue Fund or Collection Account as indicated on the said List 
of Bills attached to the Executive Director’s Report. 
 

 



 

 
 
 30 

XV. Report, if any, by Investment Committee. 
 
 No report from the investment committee. 
 

XVI. Old Business. 
 
 No old business. 
    
     
XVII. New Business 
  
 Mr. Roguski reported that every two years, the JIF and the MEL request that the 
Authority look over the employee personnel policies and procedures manual. Mr. Gregory 
Cannon, the Authority’s Labor Attorney, facilitated the review and revisions so that the Authority is 
within compliance.  
 
 The following resolution was presented: 

 
 LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 

 
RESOLUTION  

 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING UPDATED PERSONNEL 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL/HANDBOOK IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE MUNICIPAL EXCESS 

LIABILITY JOINT INSURANCE FUND’S 
RECOMMENDED BEST PRACTICES  

 
Mr. Riley offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption; 

seconded by Mr. Booth. 

 

WHEREAS, it is the policy of the Long Branch Sewerage 

Authority to treat employees and prospective employees in a manner 

consistent with all applicable employment laws and regulations 

including, but not limited to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 

as amended by the Equal Opportunity Act of 1972, the Age 

Discrimination in Employment Act, the Equal Pay for Equal Work 

Act, the Fair Labor Standards Act, the New Jersey Law Against 

Discrimination, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Family and 

Medical Leave Act, the Conscientious Employee Protection Act, the 

Public Employee Occupational Safety and Health Act, the New Jersey 



 

 
 
 31 

Workers Compensation Act, the Federal Consolidated Omnibus 

Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) and the Open Public Meeting 

Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority has been 

encouraged by the Municipal Excess Liability Joint Insurance 

Fund to update its employment policies and procedures as part of 

the Municipal Excess Liability Joint Insurance Fund’s Best 

Employment Practices Program.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long 

Branch Sewerage Authority that the Personnel Policies and 

Procedures Manual/Handbook, revised October 2023 and attached 

hereto, is hereby approved, and adopted; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that these personnel 

policies and procedures shall apply to all Authority officials, 

appointees, employees, volunteers, and independent contractors; and 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that in the event there is a 

conflict between these rules and any collective bargaining agreement, 

personnel services contract or Federal or State law, the terms and 

conditions of that contract or law shall prevail, and in all other cases, 

the Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual/Handbook shall 

prevail; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Personnel Policies 

and Procedures Manual/Handbook provides guidelines covering 

public service by Authority employees and is not a contract, and the 

provisions of the Manual/Handbook may be amended and 

supplemented from time to time without notice at the sole discretion 

of the Authority; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that to the maximum extent 

permitted by law, employment practices for the Authority shall 

operate under the legal doctrine known as “employment at will”; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Gregory J. Cannon, 

Esq., of Sobel Han & Cannon, LLP, as Labor Counsel, has reviewed 



 

 
 
 32 

and revised the Long Branch Sewerage Authority's Personnel Policies 

and Procedures Manual/Handbook to comport with the Municipal 

Excess Liability Joint Insurance Fund’s Best Employment 

Practices Program; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all 

managerial/supervisory personnel are responsible for these updated 

employment practices and the professionals and shall assist the 

Executive Director in the implementation of the policies and 

procedures in the updated Personnel Policies and Procedures 

Manual/Handbook; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority 

Chairman and/or Executive Director and/or Labor Counsel is 

authorized to execute any further documents or instruments necessary 

to effectuate this Resolution. 

ROLL CALL: 

 
 AYES NAYS ABSTAIN ABSENT 
     
 Mr. Riley  

Mr. Booth 
Mr. Brown  
Mr. Larco 
Mrs. Morris  

 

   

     
  Date:  October 18, 2023 

R19.10-23 
Exhibit BB 
 

**** 
 

Mr. Roguski next reported that as everyone is aware, a few weeks ago, the area was 
affected by about eight inches of rain which caused significant flooding and many problems for 
the Authority.  Many areas that never flooded before did flood. During this event, the Authority 
suspected that there were many sump pumps connected to the sewer resulting in excessive flows 
to the plant and through the collection system. Mr. Roguski explained that he will be meeting 
with the Engineering Committee to discuss this and what can be done to alleviate some of the 
inflow.  

 



 

 
 
 33 

Mr. Booth stated that it would be hard to figure out who has the sump pumps and who 
doesn’t. Mr. Roguski replied that you must go door to door. Other things like gutters connections 
are easier to account for.  Mr. Riley stated that the Authority should reach out to the City 
Administrator and that this should not be only an issue of the Authority but the City in general.  
He continued to state that in North Long Branch, pretty much every homeowner has a sump 
pump and for some it’s a permanent one.  Mr. Roguski stated that he is trying to coordinate a 
meeting with the City Administrator.  Mr. Brown questioned as to what the Rules and 
Regulations state.  Mr. Roguski replied that it does state that sump pumps are illegal. The DEP 
does not allow storm water to come into the sanitary collection system.  Mr. Bonello explained 
that there are regulations that can be enforced. 

 
Mr. Riley replied that Atlantic Avenue is a County Road, and if they don’t run the water 

into the sewer, they must run it to the street.  However, the County will fine them if the water 
runs into the street.  Mr. Roguski stated that the Authority must protect our process and the 
permit, as non-compliance would be a major problem and penalties would be significant.  Mr. 
Riley mentioned that a generator was underwater, and it would cost tons of money to replace. 
Mr. Roguski replied that fortunately, that generator was dried out and was restarted with no 
major issues.  

 
 

XVIII.  Adjournment at 3:50 p.m. 
 

There being no further business, on Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. Booth, and 
passed by the affirmative vote of all members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain, the 
meeting was adjourned at 3:50 p.m. 

 
 

      
                                                                                                Respectfully submitted, 
 
             

         
 _____________________________________ 

 David G. Brown, Secretary 
_____________________________ 
Thomas Roguski, Executive Director   






























































































